ZBA Minutes

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC HEARING AND MEETING
July 26, 2005

A public hearing of the Zoning Board of Adjustnent was held on
Tuesday, July 26, 2005 at 6:30 p.m in the Auditoriumat Cty
Hal | .

Tom Jenki ns conducted the heari ng.

Menbers present were: Tom Jenkins, Chair
Susan Dougl as, derk

Jay Coffey

Jack Currier

Al so present, Carter Fal k, Deputy Manager/ Zoni ng

M. Jenkins said in hearing tonight's cases the Board woul d be
| ooking for evidence on the follow ng points of |aw as
establ i shed under the Gty of Nashua Zoni ng Ordi nance and
enpowered to it under the State of New Hanpshire enabling

| egi sl ati on.

For variances in the ordinance the follow ng conditions nust be
met :

(1) A zoning restriction as applied to your property
interferes with reasonabl e use of the property, considering
t he uni que setting of the property in its environnent; (2)
no fair and substantial relationship exists between the
general purposes of the zoning ordinance and the specific
restriction on the property; and (3) the variance woul d not
injure the public or private rights of others.

(2) The spirit and intent of the ordi nance nust not be
broken by granting the variance.

(3) Ganting the variance will not adversely affect other
property in the district.

file://ll/Wwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (1 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

(4) Ganting the variance nust be of benefit to the general
public and not solely the individual.

(5 Not to grant the variance would result in an injustice.

For special exceptions designated by the ordi nance, the
foll ow ng nust be net:

(1) The use requested nust be listed in the Table of Use
Regul ati ons as a special exception in the district for which
the application is nmade or is an existing non-conformng use
for which a request to expand is being in accordance wth
Subchapter 13 of the Nashua Revised O di nances.

(2) The requested use will not create undue traffic
congestion or unduly inpair pedestrian safety.

(3) The requested use will not overload any public water,
drai nage or sewer system or any other nunicipal systemto
such an extent that the requested use or any devel oped use
in the imediate area or in any other area of the City wll
be unduly subjected to hazards affecting health, safety, or
t he general welfare.

(4) Any special regulations for the use set forth in other
sections of the zoning ordinance are fulfilled.

(5 The requested use will not inpair the integrity or
character of the district or adjoining zones nor be
detrinmental to the health, norals or welfare of the
resi dents of Nashua.

He said the order of receiving testinony will be in the
follow ng manner: Testinony wll be heard fromthe applicant
seeking the adjustnent. The applicant will have fifteen m nutes

to address the five points of |aw just described. The Board
wi Il not consider in their decision any information which does
not address those points.

file://lI/Wwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (2 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

The timng light on display will shine green until there is one
m nute remai ning at which tine the anber light will cone on.
When the light turns red, the speaker nust stop testifying. The
Board may then ask questions of the applicant.

After the presentation the Board wll then take testinony from
those in favor of the application and then fromthose in
opposi tion.

He said each speaker wll be allowed five mnutes to address the
Board. The timng light will show a green light until one
mnute is remaining. The anber light will be on during the | ast
m nute and the speaker nust stop when the light turns red.

He sai d speakers are asked to confine their coments only to the
new points of information or may sinply state that they agree

Wi th the previous speaker. Speakers will conme forward to the

m crophone and state their nane and address for the record. All
testinony given this evening is understood to be given under
oath as in a court of |aw

At the end of all testinony in opposition, the applicant wll
have five mnutes to address any points raised in opposition.
After this testinony one (only one) person fromthose in
opposition will be given five mnutes to address the applicant’s
rebuttal. No new testinony may be given and only soneone who
spoke in opposition may provide rebuttal testinony.

He said should the applicant or any of the public in opposition
feel an unjust or unlawful decision was nade may request a
rehearing of the Board within 30 days of the decision. Contact
the O fice of Zoning for further details about the process. |If
any person or party is not granted a rehearing or still feels
that an unjust or unlawful decision has been rendered by the
Board you nay appeal the case to the New Hanpshire Superi or
Court. Three affirmative votes are needed for granting a
variance or special exception. There are four nenbers present
tonight and a full Board consists of five nenbers. |[|f anyone
does not wish to proceed without a five nenber Board they have
the option not to be heard tonight and have their case heard at

file://ll/Wwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (3 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

t he neeting of August 23, 2005, with the exception of the case
for Catherine Street, which will be heard on August 9, 2005. He
asked anyone who is going to postpone to cone forward.

Atty. Brad Westgate. Atty. Westgate said he represents Richard
Rai sanen in the Catherine Street cases and as was stated by the
Chair, he is confirmng that he w shes that case to be postpone
to the August 9 Zoni ng Board neeti ng.

1. Norman E. Jr. & Shirley J. Wenn (Omers) 138 Concord
Street (Sheet 55 Lot 94) requesting the follow ng: 1) use
vari ance to expand nonconform ng use by renovi ng existing
florist shop/greenhouse and constructi ng new two-story
building wwth 1,320 square foot retail florist/gift shop,
one residential dwelling unit on second story, and a 720
square foot outdoor display area; and the foll ow ng

vari ances: 2) to encroach 10 feet into the 25 foot rear yard
set back, 3) to encroach 10 feet into the 25 foot required
front yard setback (on Adel aide Ave) for parking, and 4) to
allow a driveway 32 feet froman intersecting right-of-way —
m ni num of 50 feet required. RA Zone.

Atty. Gerald Prunier, 20 Trafalgar Square, Nashua. Atty.
Prunier said this business (Shirley's Flowers) has been on
Concord Street for a nunber of years. It is a |egal non-
conform ng use.

He said the building is long and thin. They are proposing a two-
story colonial style building wiwth an outside display area of 700
+ square feet. The present building will be denolished. The
new building will probably have | ess square footage than the
present buil di ng.

He said the Gty Traffic Engineer has reviewed the plan. One of
the things that the plan has is a wi de-open area to go out onto
Concord Street, Adelaide Street, etc. The Cty Traffic Engi neer
wanted to have a one-way entrance from Concord Street and a two-
way entrance from Adel ai de.

file://ll/Wwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (4 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

e
e

Atty. Prunier said the first floor of the new building wl
used for the flower and gift shop and the second floor wl
used as a residential unit for the Wenn's parents.

| b
| b

He said a hardship exists because of the Iength of the existing
buil ding for this |legal non-conform ng use. Anything that they
want to do to inprove its appearance on Concord Street will be
an i nprovenent. This wll take care of the traffic problem
which will benefit everybody using Concord Street. He said the
| ot is served by all public utilities.

He said the property is on a corner ot and therefore, nust neet
the requirenments for a front yard setback on both streets, which
Is the basis for a variance request.

He said they are not going to have any parking on Adel aide as
far as the applicant is concerned. He said Ms. Wenn's

busi ness is approximately 85%- 90% delivery. He said there is
sone vehicular traffic, but it’s few and far between.

He said they feel that wwth the character of the new building it
will be in character with what presently exists in the
surroundi ng areas. It should enhance the values of the
surroundi ng area. Safety and the public interest will be taken
care of by the entrances to the site and the parking at the
bui | di ng.

Ms. Douglas asked if the ot is going to be subdivided.

Atty. Prunier said it’s four lots right now The building
exists on all four. They will conbine two lots so in the end
there will be two |ots.

M. Jenkins asked about the vacant |ot in the back.

Atty. Prunier said there are no plans at this tine. It is zoned

residential, so it would have to be used for residential
pur poses.

file://lI/Wwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (5 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

M. Currier asked if there is a residence on site at the present
tine.

Atty. Prunier said there was not.

M. Currier asked about the driveway being 32° versus 50" and
what the inpact would be to get it to 50'.

Atty. Prunier said they would have to push it further back into
the lot. The rest of his coments were unintelligible.

M. Currier asked if the business plan changes any fromwhat it
IS now.

Atty. Prunier said it doesn't. It is flowers and gifts - the
sane as it is now

M. Jenkins said the outdoor display area is changing. |It’'s
20" X36". He asked if they are tal king about statuary, flowers,
or what.

Atty. Prunier said seasonal nerchandi se.

M. Jenkins asked if the business operates year round.

Atty. Prunier said it does - that hasn’t changed.

Atty. Prunier presented letters to the Board in support of this
request.

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR

Ri chard Maynard, Professional Engi neer, Maynard & Paquette. M.
Maynard said the existing footprint of the building is 4400+/ -
square feet. The proposed new building’s footprint is 1300+/-
square feet. This is a substantial reduction in the non-
conformty.

He said they will not have people backing out into the street
with the new parking lot. There will also be a sidewal k across

file://ll/Wwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (6 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

the front of the site. They wll also have | andscapi ng where
there is pavenent across the front now.

He said there is over 56% green space. Al the commercial areas
i n town have 20% or less so there will be |l ess stormwater
runof f.

M. Mynard said the zoning ordi nance tal ks about the distance
fromthe curb line to the driveway. The 32° nentioned is to the
edge of the rounding. |It’'s actually 38 to the edge of the
driveway. He said this ordinance is in place primarily to
assure that there's adequate site distance around corners. He
said there is nore than adequate site distance in all directions
in this instance.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPQGsI Tl ON

Bob Burgess, 32 Bates Drive. M. Burgess said supposedly they
are tal king about a 4400 square foot building on the site. He
referred the Board to Section 16-298 which states that whenever
a non-conform ng use of a building or portion thereof has been
di sconti nued for a continuous period of at |east one year in a
RA Zone .... the land has to conformto the current

regul ations. He said the greenhouse on the site has been vacant
for years. According to the zoning ordinance this should be

deni ed.

He referred the Board to Section 16-300 which states that any
non-conform ng structure shall not be renoved to any other

| ocation on the ot or any other |ot unless every portion of
such structure, the use thereof on the Iot, shall be conform ng.

He said on June 14, 1994 there was a hearing on this site. The
request was for a food center ???? The greenhouse had paint and
furniture stored init. It isn't being used as a greenhouse
today. It’s all boarded up.

He pointed out the 6 - 8 parking spaces. He asked where the

par ki ng spaces for the three vans that belong to the facility
wll be parked. Also, there is a bigrig that is parked on the

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (7 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

site every weekend - sonetines just the body and sonetines the
whol e t hi ng.

He said he doesn’'t believe there is any hardship on the lot. He
said back in 2001 he believes one of the |awers said that
anyone who purchased the [ and realized what they were getting

I nt o.

He said right now they have a building that is covering several
| ots and they want to reduce the size of the building in order
to preserve a lot. He said it isn’'t the neighbors’ fault that
they want to “wggle” this in and need variances to do so.

Al bert Mieller, 11 Bates Drive. M. Mieller said this is a
residential area. He said he wi shed there were absolutely no
busi nesses at all on Concord Street. He said this business is

t here because it was grandfathered. In his opinion, if the
building is torn down, the grandfathering no |onger applies. He
said if they want to rebuild or do sonething different, they
should rebuild in a business area and not in a residential area.

Janes Nassif, 4 Adel ai de Avenue. M. Nassif said he has a kid
who plays out in the street. There is no sidewal k on Adel ai de
Avenue. He's afraid that the two-way exit on Adel ai de Avenue is
right in front of his driveway. He's afraid that people com ng
around the corner m ght not be looking to the right for a kid

pl ayi ng there.

M. Currier asked if there is a | ot of business at the store.

M. Nassif said basically on the major holidays. Qher than
that it is pretty calm He believes that nost of their business
Is deliveries, as the applicant has testifi ed.

Ri chard CGelinas, 123 Concord Street. M. Celinas said he
frequents this business a fewtines a year. He said he spoke to
Shirley briefly about what is being proposed. He said it does
have sone positive attributes - the residential |ook versus what
Is currently on site is an inprovenent. The residential aspect
wWith bringing in a residence above the store can be seen to be a

file://ll/Wwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (8 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

step toward conformty.

He said there are people in the nei ghborhood who are very
concer ned about the businesses on Concord Street. They don't
want it to look |ike Arherst Street. They don’'t want any nore
busi nesses or busi nesses expandi ng.

He said he has a problemwth the outdoor display area. He said
Shirley told himthat it was basically for her muns in the fal
as she does now. He said the area is 720 square feet whereas

ri ght now she has sonewhere in the nei ghborhood of 80 square
feet. Usually she has a little three step display about 10’

| ong, sonewhere around 4’ X10° - one on either side of the door.

He said this is the first tine he has seen the site plan. He
said he’s leery of approving the setback all owances that are
proposed for the purpose of preserving another lot. There is
one building that uses all four lots. He said it seens |ike
this could be brought into conformty as far as the setbacks are
concerned. He said one of the things that spirit and intent are
supposed to | ook at is whether the benefit sought by the
appl i cant be achi eved by sone other nethod reasonably feasible
for the applicant to pursue. He said the applicant is using all
of the property now.

He said the setback issue is only going to nake it easier down
the road for this business to expand. That is sonething that
gi ves hi mand ot her people sone concern.

A wonman cane to the m crophone, but her nane and address were
not stated. She said the big truck that was nentioned does not
belong to Shirley, it belongs to sonebody across the street. He
puts it there when he wants to.

She said Shirley has muns that she puts out for display.
She said she is a little concerned about the cars com ng out.

She said they' re concerned whether the shop is there or not.
Q her than that she doesn’t have a problemw th the proposal.

file://llIWwwlive/nashua_ www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (9 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

Keith Fredette, 140 Concord Street. M. Fredette said he
directly abuts the subject property. He said the whole Iength
of her building is 3 fromhis |and.

He said he thinks this will be good for the comunity. He said
it’s not going to take away fromhis privacy one bit. There's
not going to be four house lots in there.

He said he is not in opposition.

Andr ew Gagnon, 13 Courtland Street. M. (Gagnon said he is
speaking in favor of the plan. He said he lives off of Concord
Street on the other side of Geely Park. He said he frequents
this business quite often and thinks they do a great job.

He said this is a nmuch better for the area. It’'s nore
conformng. It’'s much nore in keeping wth sone of the
col onials that have been recently built in the area.

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR - REBUTTAL

Atty. Prunier said they have a non-conform ng | egal business
existing on the site. They are going to take it down and
replacing it so that it will be nore conform ng. The nei ghbors
who |ive next door to the site are in favor of the request
because it is going to be nore conform ng.

M. Currier asked if this use were to change to a conveni ence
store would it have to cone back to the Zoning Board for
approval .

Atty. Prunier said it would be a change of use so it woul d have
to cone back to the Board.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCSI TI ON - REBUTTAL

Bob Burgess, 32 Bates Drive. M. Burgess said he is totally
opposed to the outside area. At this tinme the applicant is
saying that there will be nmuns in the fall, but in the spring
they will see statues, trees, nulch, etc. He said if you | ook

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (10 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

at the mnutes of the neeting from 1994 they went through this
and at that tine it took the City sone tine to renove the
illegal activity that was going on there.

He said that although he lives on Bates Drive, he has been there
for thirty years or so and he knows Concord Street well.

He referred back to his testinony that refers to non-
conformties. He said a good portion of this structure has been
abandoned for nmany years and the way he understands it, it
cannot be used again as a non-conform ng use.

M. Coffey said this is an inprovenent over what currently
exists. There is a reduction in the non-conformty. He would
|like to see the ot line in the rear pushed further back.

Ms. Douglas said that one thing that they have to renenber is
that this is a corner |ot so the setback restrictions are nore
severe.

M. Jenkins said this is a great inprovenent over what currently
exi sts. He spoke of the parking lot, the curb cut and
pedestrian safety. He said he'd rather see outdoor display than
t he greenhouses that are on site right now He said the Board
m ght want to consider a condition on the outdoor display that
there be no earth products such as dirt, mulch, stone, etc.

M. Currier said he was westling with the rear yard setback as
wel |, but there has been testinony that this is a | ow vol une
busi ness so nmaybe they aren’t asking for too nuch.

He said he didn't think the traffic will really change on
Adel ai de Street because of this change. He said he believes it
wi Il stay pretty nuch the sane. He said the testinony fromthe
nei ghbor right next-door neans a | ot because he testified that
he believed it would inprove the nei ghborhood.

M. Jenkins said denolishing the greenhouses will increase the
surroundi ng property val ues.

file:///lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (11 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

Ms. Douglas said she didn't have a big problemwth it. She
woul d like to see a condition that the outdoor display area not
be covered.

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to grant the use variance to expand non-
conform ng use by renoving existing florist shop/greenhouse and
constructing a new two-story building with 1300 square feet of
florist/gift shop, one residential dwelling unit on second
floor, and a 720 square foot outdoor display area at 138 Concord
Street. The zoning restriction as applied interferes with the

| andowner’ s reasonabl e use of the property considering the

uni que setting of the property inits environnent. No fair and
substantial relationship exists between the general purpose of

t he zoni ng ordi nance and the specific restrictions on the
property. There will be a reduction in the footprint of the
bui | ding. Anything that can be done on the property woul d
continue to be non-conformng. It is wthin the spirit and

i ntent of the ordinance. It wll not adversely affect the
property val ues of surrounding parcels. It will not be contrary
to the public interest. Substantial justice will be served.
Speci al Conditions: No |loam stone or mulch (earth products) and
this will remain an open uncovered di splay area.

SECONDED by M. Currier.
MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

MOTION by M. Currier to grant the variance at 138 Concord
Street to encroach 10" into the 25 rear yard setback and
variance to encroach 10" into the 25 required front yard

set back (Adel ai de Avenue) for parking. The zoning restriction
as applied interferes wwth the | andowner’s reasonabl e use of the
property considering the unique setting of the property inits
environnent. No fair and substantial relationship exists

bet ween the general purposes of the ordi nance and the specific

restrictions on the property. It is on a corner lot. It is a
reasonabl e use of the property. It is wthin the spirit and
intent of the ordinance. It will not adversely affect the
property val ues of surrounding parcels. It is not contrary to

the public interest. Substantial justice will be served.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (12 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

SECONDED by M. Currier.
MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to grant the variance at 138 Concord Street
for a driveway |located 32° fromthe intersecting right-of-way
where 50' is required. The zoning restriction as applied
interferes wwth the | andowner’ s reasonabl e use of the property.
It is acorner lot. |In order to achieve a safe flow of traffic
exiting fromthe property the variance is needed. It is within
the spirit and intent of the ordinance. It will not adversely
affect the property values of surrounding parcels. It is not
contrary to the public interest. Substantial justice wll be
served.

SECONDED by M. Currier.

MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

2. John A, & Paula M Farrar (Oamers) 15 Spindlew ck Drive
(Sheet B Lot 2503) requesting variance to encroach 5 feet
into the 25 foot required front yard setback (on Brackenwood
Drive) to construct an attached 24’ x37' —6” garage with room
above. RO Zone.

John Farrar, 15 Spindlewick Drive. M. Farrar said he is

| ocated on a corner lot and therefore subject to two front yard
set backs. He is asking for the 5 setback so that they wll be
able to construct a garage that will be deep enough to get both
their vehicles into the garage.

He said this won’t go any closer to any of his neighbors. It
just goes a little closer to the street.

He said this will only help to increase property val ues as they
wll be able to get their vehicles into the garage and the
addition will inprove the neighborhood as well.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (13 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

M. Jenkins said he has seen the property and was a little
nervous about it because it seened |ike the driveway was right
on top of the corner and with the construction of this structure
they will be closer to the corner.

M. Farrar said he would still have 20, plus there is sone
ri ght-of-way belonging to the Gty. He said there s about 47
fromthe current garage to the curb right now

M. Jenkins said he was | ooking at the driveway across the
street which |ooked like it was at 25 and was trying to
vi sual i ze how the subject property would | ook at 20'.

M. Farrar said the house behind his is nmuch closer to the
street and the house directly across fromtheir driveway is nuch
closer to the street and is also on a corner lot. He said one
thing that is deceiving is that his house is on a hill so it

| ooks like its closer than it actually is.

M. Jenkins agreed. He also nentioned that there was a stop
sign there.

M. Jenkins said there would still be roomto park outside even
with this addition.

M. Farrar said they would still be able to park three vehicles
outside on the driveway after the proposed garage is constructed.

M. Jenkins asked if was possible to incorporated the existing
garage into the proposed garages.

M. Farrar said because of the grade and the depth they need,
this is the only way they can do this. They net with an
architect to | ook at their options.

M. Currier asked if there was roomin front of the proposed

garage to park cars. He said there is going to be 20" to the
property I|ine.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (14 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

M. Farrar said he believes that when the subdivision or street
was done they set it up so that it would have roomfor a
sidewal k. There is actually another 3 - 5 on top of what’'s on
the plan. There is a sidewalk on the other side of the street
and there is a sidewal k that cones down the front of their house
and basically stops at their driveway.

M. Currier asked if there is a garage now.

M. Farrar said there is a drive-under garage. |It’s about 16’
deep and not deep enough to get their existing vehicles into.
Due to the grade of their ot they can’t really extend into that.

M. Currier asked how many nei ghbors have a three bay garage.
He said it | ooked like there were people with either none or two.

M. Farrar said there are a lot with the two. Further up

Spi ndl ewi ck there are a sone houses that have three bays. The
third bay would be snmaller. They have a utility trailer and
they are trying to get everything out of the driveway |ike the
ki ds' bikes and the utility trailer.

M. Currier asked if M. Farrar had shown this design to his
nei ghbors.

M. Farrar said he did. Everyone he spoke with supports the
request .

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR

Janes Landman, 16 Spindlewick Drive. M. Landman said he |ives

across the street fromM. Farrar. He said he has | ooked at the
plans and feels that it is wthin the spirit of the

nei ghbor hood. He said the setback doesn’'t seemto intrude into

any driving site lines. He doesn’'t see anything against it and

t he nei ghborhood is all for it.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPQOsI | TON

No One.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (15 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

M. Coffey said when you drive around the nei ghborhood you do
see sone lots that are “tight” and they have simlar additions
such as famly roons. He said he believed it would blend in
with the rest of the nei ghborhood.

M. Currier said he thought it would stick out, but doesn’'t know
that he felt strongly enough about it since there s testinony by
an abutter that thinks it won't.

M. Jenkins said he thought it would stick out too. He said
there is a four-way stop sign a the intersection.

Di scussi on ensued.

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to grant the variance at 15 Spi ndl ewi ck
Drive to encroach 5 into the 25 required front yard setback on
Brackenwood Drive to construct an attached 24’ X37 1/2' garage

Wi th room above. The variance is needed to enable the
applicant’ s proposed use of the property given the special
conditions of the property. The benefit sought by the applicant
cannot be achi eved by sone other nethod reasonably feasible for
the applicant to pursue. The dwelling is |ocated on a corner

| ot and has to neet two front yard setbacks. The sloping of the

| and prevents them from adequately using the current garage. It
is wwthin the spirit and intent of the ordinance. It will not
adversely affect the property values of surrounding parcels. It

wi Il not be contrary to the public interest. Substanti al
justice will be served by granting the variance.

SECONDED by M's. Dougl as.

MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

3. Amherst Pl aza, LLC (Owmer) WSEBE W/ dcats, LLC
(Applicant) 449 Amherst Street (Sheet H Lot 35) requesting
variance to exceed maximumwal |l sign area, 47 square feet
al l owed, 37 square feet existing, an additional 37 square
feet requested. @B Zone.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (16 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

Scott Carrigan, Omer - Quizno's, 449 Anherst Street. M.
Carrigan said this plaza has two entrances - a nain entrance for
the mddle of the plaza right off of Amherst Street and then
right after Kinko's you can take a right turn and then a |eft
into the side of the plaza. |t nakes sense to put sone signage
there to | et people know that are com ng west on 101A that they
can take a right and then a left into the plaza. He said there
I s parking on the side of the plaza where the sign would be

| ocat ed.

M. Jenkins asked if Quizno's is noving in.
Carrigan said they are | ooking to open Saturday.
Jenkins asked if they have a sign.

Carrigan said they have a sign on the front.

= 5 % 3

. Jenkins said he fails to see the hardship. He asked if he
wasn't correct in stating that all the businesses in the whole
strip have signage in the front.

M. Carrigan said that this is correct.

M. Jenkins asked if there wasn’t a ground sign where Qui zno’' s
woul d be recognized on it.

M. Carrigan said there is a ground sign, but it’s junbled up on
the sign with every other tenant. He said there’s going to be
six of them on the sign.

M. Currier said he goes down this street a | ot and he was there
this norning. He said he had no problemfinding the |Iocation
with the existing sign. He said he was in the right hand | ane,
but he saw the sign in plenty of tinme to turn into the

driveway. People going eastbound are going to go by the shop
and U Turn around anyway. He said he didn’t think that there
was any di sadvantage and he didn’'t see a need for the sign.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (17 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

M. Carrigan said he doesn’'t know if there is a need for it, but
it would only draw in nore custoners. He said he is |ooking to
maxi m ze sal es.

M. Currier brought up signage for a shop at the d obe Plaza on
Main Street.

M. Carrigan said Main Street has a |ight every ten yards and
traffic stops and goes. There are crosswal ks everywhere.

(Tape change - sone testinony |lost) Testinony picks up ..
He said by the tine the person realizes there is a Quizno's Sub

in the plaza they will have passed the entrance. He said it
made sense to himto get a sign on the side.

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR

No One.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCSI Tl ON
No One.

MOTION by M. Currier to deny the variance to exceed maxi mum
wal | sign area, 47 square feet allowed, 37 square feet existing,
addi tional 37 square feet requested at 449 Amherst Street. The
variance i s not needed to enable the applicant’s proposed use of
this property. The existing ground sign and wall sign are
adequate. The increased signage is not within the spirit and

i ntent of the ordinance.

SECONDED by M. Jenki ns.
MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY
4. Jeffrey M & Karen M Mrse (Omers) 31 Gordon Street

(Sheet 64 Lot 7) requesting variance to encroach 7 feet into
the 10 foot required right side yard setback to construct an

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (18 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

attached two-story 20’ x24’ garage addition. RA Zone.

Karen Morse, 31 Gordon Street. Ms. Mirse said they wwsh to
construct a two-car garage which would be level with their
basenent. Above that there would be residential space. She
said the roofline would remain the sane.

She said they have two bedroons in their hone and they have two

children - a boy and a girl. By adding the residential space
above the garage they will be able to have anot her bedroomin
t he house.

M. Jenkins asked how |l ong they have lived in their hone.

Ms. Mrse said they have |ived here since 2001.

She said the property is on a slope. The driveway wll no
| onger be on a slope with the construction of this addition.
They feel this will be safer for their children and the other

chil dren who cone over to play.

She said they have spoken to all their abutters and all of them
have said that they had no problemw th the request.

M. Jenkins said this property is about 3 higher in ground
el evation than the nei ghbor next door to the right. He asked if
the proposal is to bring the whole el evati on down by 3.

Ms. Mirse said their garage will be level with their basenent
and they will have a residential space above that. The roofline
will remain the sane.

M. Jenkins asked if the driveway would still be pitched.

Ms. Mirse said not quite like it is right now. She said there
wll be retaining walls on both sides.

M. Jenkins asked if you are facing the house on the |left hand
side there will be a retaining wall. She presented the Board

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (19 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

with a copy of the design.

M. Currier asked about the house to the left of Ms. Mirse's
home. He said it appears that the garage is down under.

Ms. Mrse said this is correct and that is what they are
proposing to do as well.

M. Jenkins said he was concerned because of the runoff. He said
the honmes on the street are relatively close together, but he
doesn’t believe there is anyone only 3 fromthe property line.

Ms. Mrse said on the other side of her house there's a 6
encroachnent. She said there’s only 15 between the two hones.

M. Coffey asked Ms. Mrse if they are getting rid of the shed
and she said they are.

M. Jenkins said they are already encroaching 4" into the left
side yard setback and now they want to encroach into the other
side yard setback. He said that the problemis that having no
side yard setback an energency vehicle would not be able to
access the back yard. They would have to drive across the

nei ghbor’s yard to get back into her back yard.

Ms. Mrse said the space right nowis being used as a driveway
so they would be maxim zing their |iving space.

M. Jenkins asked if the proposal is for a two-car garage and
Ms. Mrse said it is.

He nentioned that it's hard for people to cone to the Board and
say they are nei ghbors and that they don’t want the proposal
passed by the Board.

M. Jenkins said if they were to shrink it to a single-car

garage, they could still have their roomon top. He said he
couldn’t support the request as proposed.

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR

file://llIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (20 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

Jeff Morse, 31 Gordon Street. M. Mrse said he’s not sure what
was neant by “it’s hard for people to cone down here.” He asked
If he had a witten statenment fromthe nei ghbor. ..

M. Jenkins said it wouldn’t make any difference. He said it’s
the Board’s job to protect the current lot as it exists to the
best of their ability.

M. Mrse said the encroachnent on the other side has existed
since the house was built. He questioned how this could be
call ed an encroachnent.

M. Jenkins said a 10’ setback is very minimal. This basically
means there is 20" between hones. Once you are encroaching into
t hat setback and the nei ghbor next door is encroaching, you
actually end up with no space between the two structures. He
said it decreases property values and it could | ead to dangerous
situations, such as fire spreading fromone structure to anot her.

M. Mrse said on the other side its 15 from house to house.
He said this is the nature of the neighborhood. The houses are
cl ose.

M. Jenkins said it is already a condensed nei ghborhood. They
are trying not to nake it nore condensed by adding a structure
that will go wthin 3 of the setback.

M. Mrse asked what M. Jenkins neant by his remark concerning
a single-car garage.

M. Jenkins asked the width of the proposed garage.
Currier answered 20'.
Jenkins asked if two cars could fit into it.

Morse said they coul d.

= 5 % 3

Jenkins asked if they couldn’'t shrink it to 15 and get a

file://llIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (21 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

car in.

M. Mrse said he could get one car in. He asked if it was
possi ble to conprom se and get a 17° w de garage.

M. Jenkins said the Board wll discuss it after hearing any
ot her testinony.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPGCsSI TI ON
No One.

Ms. Douglas said it seens |ike the property next door is right
on the property line.

The Board di scussed how the whole street is “tight” as well as
wat er runoff.

M. Currier said that the left side yard setback is already down
to 6. If you have 6° on one side and 3' on the other, you're
whittling it right down. He said he has a 20° w de garage and
it’s a tight squeeze for two cars. He feels for the applicant
because they want to stay in the house and raise their Kkids
there, but it’'s 3.

M. Coffey said the applicant is anenable to shrinking the size
of the garage.

M. Jenkins said that is fine, but he thinks the 10" that is
requi red should be net. The house next door is alnost right at
the Iine.

M. Currier said it sounds |ike the applicant is on good terns
with their neighbors to the right. As tinme goes on, properties
change and when they don’t have those good terns and there is a
house 3° away fromthe property line, it could cause problens.

Ms. Douglas said if this is denied by the Board they can still
build a single-car garage by right and neet the setbacks.

file:///lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (22 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

MOTION by M. Currier to deny the variance to encroach 7' into
the 10’ required right yard setback to construct an attached two
story 20’ X24' garage addition at 31 Gordon Street. The variance
IS not needed to enable the applicant’s proposed use of the
property given the special conditions. The left side of the
house is close to the property line and the side yard setback of
10° is pretty mnimal as it is. A 3 setback is not wwthin the
spirit and intent of the ordinance.

SECONDED by M. Jenki ns.

MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

5. Floyd W CGorveatt (Omer) W I man Fernandez (Applicant)
23 Benson Avenue (Sheet 10 Lot 27) requesting speci al
exception to convert a two-famly dwelling into a three-
famly dwelling. RB Zone.

W I man Fernandez, 21/23 Benson Avenue. M. Fernandez said right
nowthis is a two-famly house and he is requesting a three-
famly. The third unit would be in the basenent. He said he
has plenty of parking on site.

M. Jenkins asked if M. Fernandez owned the property.
M. Fernandez said he does. He said he just bought it |ast nonth.
M. Jenkins asked if the renovati ons have al ready been done.

M. Fernandez said he has not done any renovations. He is
seeki ng approval so that he can do the work.

M. Jenkins said he couldn’t find the property when he went out
to viewit.

M. Fernandez said it |looks like a single-famly house, but it’'s

side by side. The bigger side is a three-bedroomunit, up and
down and the other side is a one-bedroom apartnent. The new

file://llIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (23 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

unit is going to be in the basenent.
M. Jenkins asked if this is a wal kout basenent.

M. Fernandez said it is. It has two nmain doors and you can
walk into it fromthe outside.

M. Jenkins asked about the parking.

M. Fernandez said on the side of the house there is so nuch
parking that the prior owner rented to the four-bedroom house
next door.

M. Jenkins remarked that the ot size is adequate and the house
Is in an area of m xed use, single-famly, two-famly, four
famlies, etc.

M. Currier asked how many bedroons the two existing units have.

M. Fernandez said the biggest unit has three bedroons and the
ot her one has one bedroom

M. Currier asked if M. Fernandez is proposing to change these
two units and M. Fernandez said these wll stay the sane.

M. Currier asked if the basenent unit wll be a one-bedroom
apart nent .

M. Fernandez said he can get two bedroons out of it.
SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR

No One.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCSI Tl ON

G yde Cooper, 19 Benson Avenue. M. Cooper asked if there was
going to be any construction on the outside.

The answer was not heard, but apparently it was a “no” because

file://llIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (24 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

he had no further questions.

M. Currier said he doesn’'t have any opposition to the request.
There is sufficient parking.

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to grant the special exception to convert a
two-famly dwelling into a three-famly dwelling at 23 Benson
Avenue. This is listed in the Table of Uses, Section 16-227,
Residential #3. It wll not create any undue traffic congestion
or unduly inpair pedestrian safety. There is sufficient parking.
It will not overload public water, drainage, sewer or other
muni ci pal systens. No special regulations are required. It wll
not inpair the integrity or be out of character with the

nei ghborhood or be detrinental to the health, norals or welfare
of the residents. There are a nunber of nmulti-famly dwellings
surroundi ng this particul ar parcel.

SECONDED by Curri er.

MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY
6. Homer L. Jr. & Caire L. Goons Irr Trust (Owers) 1
A en Drive (Sheet B Lot 489) requesting variance to encroach
10 feet into the 30 foot rear yard setback to construct an
attached 17' x40’ garage. R9 Zone.

Nobody canme forward to present this case.

MOTI ON by Ms. Douglas to deny 1 A en Drive as nobody has cone
forward to make a presentation.

SECONDED by M. Coffey.

MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

7. Richard A. & Bonnie M Porzio (Owmers) 127 Amher st
Street (Sheet 60 Lot 11) requesting special exception to

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (25 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

convert an existing single-famly dwelling with an accessory
prof essional dental office to a two-famly dwelling with an
accessory professional dental office. RA Zone.

Atty. Gerald R Prunier, 20 Trafal gar Square. Atty. Prunier
said this building is |ocated on Anmherst Street adjacent to the
Nashua Children’s Hone. It is being used as a residence for the
Porzi os and a dental office. It’s a two-story building and the
proposal is to divide it into two units. There would be no
exteri or changes.

He said the parking is in the rear of the building. There are
fourteen spaces provided where eleven are required. There is
nore roomto put in additional parking, if necessary.

He said the use is allowed as a special exception under Section
16-227. It is served by all public utilities - water, sewer,
gas, etc. It wll not cause any increase in pedestrian or
vehicle safety. They are tal king about adding one unit. It

wi Il not be out of character with the nei ghborhood because there
are no exterior changes.

M. Jenkins asked if this is currently an in-hone occupati on.

Atty. Prunier said M. Porzio lives in the house and he intends
to stay there in the upstairs of the house.

M. Currier asked how nmany bedroons there are upstairs.
Atty. Prunier said “two.”

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR

No One.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCSI TI ON

No One.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (26 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to grant the special exception at 127
Amherst Street to convert an existing single-famly dwelling

Wi th an accessory professional dentist’s office to a two-famly
dwelling with an accessory professional dentist’s office. This
is listed in the Table of Uses, Section 16-227, Residential #2.
It will not create any undue traffic congestion or unduly inpair
pedestrian safety. There is adequate parking for all tenants in
the building. It wll not overload the public water, drainage,
sewer age, or other nmunicipal systens. There are no speci al

regul ations required. It will not inpair the integrity or be
out of character wth the nei ghborhood or be detrinental to the
health, norals or welfare of the residents. There are other
multi-famlies.

SECONDED by M. Currier.

MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

8. Alvin R Bonnette Rev. Trust (Omer) 62-70 East Pearl
Street (Sheet 32 Lot 20) requesting special exception to

| ocate 16 required parking spaces in nunicipal lots, 14 for
a restaurant expansion and 2 for a future retail use at
vacant storefront. CB/ MJ Zone.

Pet er Bonnette, Co-Omer 62-70 E. Pear|l Street, Busi ness Address

IS 5 Pine Street Extension, Nashua. M. Bonnette said that the
request before the Board is for a parking waiver for the use of
16 additional parking spaces to be assigned to nunicipal lots
and/ or on-street parking. Fourteen spaces wll be due to a
restaurant expansion of “Manhattan on Pearl” and two spots w ||
be for the use of a financial services group they are currently
I n negotiations with to occupy the vacant storefront.

He said the restaurant expansion should have very little inpact
on daytine parking due to the nature of after hours business
clientele that is serviced by this establishnment. There wll be
no structural changes. It is for interior renovations only.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (27 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

M. Bonnette said this neets all the criteria for the district,
whi ch includes restaurants such as Surf, Martha' s, M chael
Tinmothy's, Villa Banca, etc. He said on-street parking on East
Pear|l Street, Spring Street, and the Spring Street ot w |
provi de adequate parking as well as after hours parking
avai l abl e at the Superior Courthouse which is I ess than one

bl ock away.

M. Jenkins asked M. Bonnette if he really thought he could
come downtown and find fourteen additional parking spaces with
no problemat all.

M. Bonnette said “absolutely.” He said the dining clientele of
Downt own Nashua know where to | ook for these spaces. He said if
anyt hi ng, Manhattan on Pearl has a great follow ng fromthe wal k-
by traffic.

M. Currier said M. Bonnette nentioned the Superior
Courthouse. He asked if a lot of clientele park in this |ot,

M. Bonnette said if you go there on a Sunday night you will see
that there’s a fair anmount of people that park in the Superior
Court house parking lot on Spring Street next to the Post Ofice.
He said if you see anybody parked in this ot after 4:30PMit is
not fromthe courthouse.

M. Currier asked how | ong ago Manhattan on Pearl| opened.
M. Bonnette said he thought it was July 7, 2004.

M. Currier said the business nust be doing well and that is why
t hey are | ooking to expand.

M. Bonnette said the profile has changed slightly. They are
| ooking to introduce an authentic Spanish nenu. Oiginally the
concept was nore of a martini bar and the food was what it took
to get by the standards set forth by the State of New Hanpshire
for drinking establishnments. It seened that the food was nore
of a drag on it because it wasn’'t |arge enough to service the
clientele. This allows an additional seating capacity to put a

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (28 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

better focus on the food.

M. Jenkins asked if NH |aw requires that you serve a certain
percentage of food in order to have a bar and, if so, what the
percentage is.

M. Bonnette said the State does require that food be served in
order to have a bar. He said it is a conplex fornula. There's
a $75, 000 breaking point over the course of a year where if you
do that nuch food it doesn’'t natter.

SPEAKI NG I N FAVOR

No One.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCSI Tl ON
No One.

M. Coffey said he thought that during the evening there is
pl enty of parking available for eating establishnents.

M. Currier said he didn’t have an issue with the off-site
parking. He's found that there is parking available in the
parking lot behind the high-rise parking. (He showed the

| ocation on the plan).

MOTION by M. Currier to approve the special exception for 62-70
E. Pearl Street to | ocate sixteen required parking spaces in
muni ci pal lots, fourteen for restaurant expansion and two for
future retail use at the vacant storefront. The use is listed
in the Table of Uses. It will not create undue traffic
congestion or unduly inpair pedestrian safety. It wll not

overl oad public water, drainage, sewer or other nunici pal
systens. Special regulations are fulfilled. It will not inpair
the integrity or be out of character with the nei ghborhood. 1In
fact, it is in concert wth the Downtown Master Plan to pronote
establishnents of this sort. It will not be detrinental to the
health, norals or welfare of the residents.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (29 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

SECONDED by M. Coffey.

MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

9. Peter M & Alvin R Bonnette, Trustees of A R Bonnette
Rev. Trust (Omers) 24 Crown Street (Sheet 26 Lot 33) requesting
use variance to allow retail sales and service of notorcycles
and ATV's. G Zone.

Pet er Bonnette - Co-Omer of 24 Crown Street, Business Address:
5 Pine Street Extension, Nashua, NH M. Bonnette said this
request is for a use variance to allow service, consignnent
sales, and limted retail sales of accessories for the two-
wheel , four-wheel, and snow machi ne i ndustry.

He said Jim Morse worked for many years at the fornmer Nashua
Honda/ Suzuki Deal ership at 283 Main Street. In 2001 M.
Bonnette purchased that property and he | eased the newy vacat ed
“Best Cycle” after they noved up to Amherst Street. He went into
busi ness as “Jamm n Motor Sports.” He has built a quiet, |ow
key followng in the ATV consignnent business as well as in
service accounts in this trade.

He said he recently sold the 283 Main Street property for the
new WAl green’s project. He said 283 Main Street was slated for
denolition [ast week. He said M. Mirse is still in the
facility because he needs a place to go. He has known this has
been com ng down the pike for 1-Y% years and he has tried to find
the right location for his shop during this tine and coul dn’t
find a location that would work for him

He said 24 Crown Street is the forner Nashua Grocer’s

War ehouse. |Its probably a hundred year old original brick
structure - a mll building. Mre recently Law Warehouses
occupied it during the 60s, 70s, 80s, and 90s as they expanded
on that building. It is currently occupied by nultiple

war ehouse and distribution tenants. He said the spirit and
i ntent of the ordinance is not violated whereas the proposed use

file:///lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (30 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

will fit current trends such as a kitchen cabinet retail

show oom at Arnstrong across the street and service type

busi nesses such as Harry Wells, also across the street, as well
as United Supply (a plunbing supply house).

He said this will have a positive inpact on the property val ues
by creating activity in a part of this building that has been
vacant for many years.

M. Bonnette said the public benefit wll be served by hel ping
rejuvenate activity in this zone, which has been negatively
| npacted by the dem se in manufacturing jobs.

He said substantial justice wll be served by allow ng the
applicant to continue to thrive in his business. He has had a
difficult tinme finding a spot to rel ocate.

He said the building has simlar uses that will be conpatible
with the proposed tenant. There are three whol esal e

di stri butors and one regi onal wheel chair warehouse and factory
service representative.

M. Jenkins said as he recalls this building has had a nultitude
of different businesses over the years. He said at one period
hi s daughter went to cheerl eadi ng canp here.

M. Coffey asked if this will be on the first floor.

M. Bonnette said it will be on both. He said there wll be
4,000 square feet on the first floor on the far west corner of
the building. He said there is a glass door wwth a sidelight
and a transom above and a small overhead door to gain access
wth a ranp. He said the grade in the building is about 3

| ower than the graded sidewal k.

M. Jenkins asked if the fascia of the building is going to be
changed at all.

M. Bonnette said there are no plans to change the fascia of the
bui | di ng.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (31 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

M. Currier said he likes that this would help out this part of
town as it’'s obviously been depressed. The part he questions is
t he noise that the business would create. He said he's been to
t he existing shop and other shops and it isn’'t quiet. There are
a |lot of bikes wth open pipes and when they leave its loud. He
has a vision that the owner won't be able to control the noise
and it’s going to create a disturbance in the nei ghborhood. He
asked if he could address how that noise would be controll ed.

M. Bonnette said he hasn’'t had the sane experience with this
tenant on Main Street during the four or five years he has been
there. He said he hasn’'t had any conpl aints about noise. He
said M. Mrse may address this question, but he wanted to
remnd the Board that this is a General Industrial zone, not a
residential zone.

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR

Jim Morse, Charles Street, Hudson, NH.

M. Jenkins asked M. Mrse his typical business hours.

M. Mrse said typically they are 9: 00AM - 6: 00PM 9: 00AM -
8: O0PM on Thursday and 9: 00AM - 3: 00PM on Sat ur days.

M. Currier asked M. Mrse to address the concern he had about
noi se.

M. Mrse said there are a handful of notorcyclists that believe
| oud pi pes save lives. In his store they believe | oud pipes
risk ??? unintelligible. He said he is a Mdtorcycle Safety

I nstructor at the DW. He has a decibel neter at his shop and
nobody gets a State inspection if they are over 106 deci bel s.
Most of his custoners believe the sane as he does. There are
going to be a handful of people with the |oud pipes that will be
i n and out of the store occasionally. He said when people are

| eaving his shop they are told to keep the noi se down.

He said in the three years or so that he has been at 283 Miin

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (32 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

Street he hasn’t had one conplaint fromanyone. He said he
actually had an elderly |ady cone in and taking over from where
“Best Cycle” left off because they used to race up and down the
old railroad bed behind the building. He said he doesn’'t allow
t his.

Wayne Bal colm Rhode |sland Avenue, Nashua, NH M. Bal col m
said he has known Jimfor about seven years. He has hel ped
pai nt and hang pictures in the new building to nmake it habitable
for a notorcycle shop.

He said he knows the Alderman fromhis district nentioned that
there hasn’t been any noise and there have been no conpl aints
fromthe neighbors or any of his constituents.

He said if you walk in the store, it is cleaner than his (M.
Bal col m s) house is.

He said this will enhance the nei ghborhood on Crown Street. The
spot has been vacant for nmany years. He said that they | ooked
for a building for sone tinme and either the price was

prohi bitive or the |ocation was w ong.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCsI Tl ON
Sally Febonio. Ms. Febonio said she lives directly next door

to the proposed business. She presented a petition from sone of
t he nei ghbors and sone pictures to the Board.

She said she spoke with soneone from Arnstrong Cabi nets across
the street and was told that they had been approached about
renting parking and they turned them down. She said there is no
parking on the side of the street where this business is
proposed. She said there is a fire hydrant directly in front of
this building and people would have to park on the sidewal k.

She said Wlls is across the street and that is pretty busy
during the week, basically 7. 00AM - 5:00PM There is no

busi ness on the weekends. It is quiet for all of themwho live
i n the nei ghborhood. She said she finds it hard to believe this
proposed busi ness woul d not create any noi se.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (33 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

She said she went around the nei ghborhood and tal ked to sone
people. She said they indicated the traffic was terrible
because it's a by-pass and a | ot of people take the side street
to get past East Hollis Street. There is a train that backs
traffic up and al so nakes it busy in that |ocation.

She read a letter to the Board concerning the change of use at
24 Crown Street to allow a retail notorcycle store in the
nei ghbor hood. The letter expressed the concerns of parking,

noi se, and the hours of operation. It addressed the adverse
| npact to property values due to the parking as well as having
repairs and test rides being perforned on the site. It says the

val ues woul d al so be affected by the hours of operation for the
busi ness that woul d extend beyond the typical of the current

busi nesses sharing the nei ghborhood. It also indicated that this
type of business, if successful, would increase the traffic on
Crown Street. It nentioned wi nter parking and snow renoval

al ready being difficult. This letter also addressed the

I nformati on about the abutter refusing to rent parking spaces
for the use of the proposed site.

The letter went on to state that off-highway recreational
vehi cl es do not have restrictions on exhaust decibel |evels and
t he performance pipes are brutally | oud.

M. Currier asked what happened with the parking when there were
other tenants in the space.

M's. Febonio said she doesn’t know if they illegally parked

across the street. She said she did see cars parked at the

Arnmstrong Kitchen site. They are closed at night. She said
there wasn’t any noi se.

She asked how [ ong the owner of this site has actually owned the
bui | di ng. She asked how the notorcycles are going to be
di spl ayed.

M. Jenkins said they will have the owner answer these questions.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (34 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

SPEAKI NG | N FAVOR - REBUTTAL

Peter Bonnette. M. Bonnette said he has owned this property
since 1999 and this particul ar space has been occupied. At one
time it was a conputer refurbishnment conpany where the person
woul d bring in tractor trailer |oads of conputers and sort them
and re-sell themto school systens. That was the only tenant in
t hat space for about 1-Yyears. Oherwise it has been vacant
other than a short tinme where the cheerleading place used it
while they were waiting for their new facility to be ready in
Hudson.

He said he is in the construction business and he has been doi ng
a fair anount of work for Arnstrong Cabinets so he has a
relationship with them He said they have a parking area in the
back that has upwards of 135 parking spaces, not including
what’'s in the front on CGtown Street or in their show oom parKki ng
area. He said they have expressed interest in working with them
to | ease parking spaces to potential tenants.

He said they have not tal ked about any outdoor display. It is a
Cty sidewalk in the front. It is a solid concrete block wall
facing the adjacent property. There are no windows in that wall
so it should be fairly soundproof on anything that should be
happeni ng on the inside of the building.

M. Currier asked about notorcycl es being displ ayed.

M. Bonnette said the inside of the building has been cordoned
off so that the front section of about 1500 square feet would be
used as an interior showoom simlar to what the owner has now
on Main Street. He said the owner of the notorcycle shop wll
not display themon the sidewalk at this location |ike he does
on Main Street.

M. Currier asked about the | eased spaces from Arnstrong.
M. Bonnette said he has a verbal agreenent with Arnstrong that

they would be willing to | ease parking spaces to themif parking
becones an issue. He said there is parking within the facility,

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (35 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

cl oser to the | oading dock end of the building al ongside the
railroad tracks. He said he | eases space from Cuilford Railroad
as wel | .

M. Coffey asked what the typical case would be when people drop
their bike off.

M. Bonnette said at the present |ocation on the corner of
QOterson & Main Street there is no parking and if you were ever
to conme up Oterson Street towards Main Street you wll always
see Jinms one pickup truck parked there with two ot her spaces
next Rent One Plus on that side of the street. There's always
par ki ng spaces available. He said it seens to himthat the only
person that ever parks thereis Jim He said it seens to be a
client base that is in and out and never really convergi ng at
his | ocati on.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCOSI TI ON - REBUTTAL

Sally Febonio. M. Febonio said she spoke to “Rhonda” at the
Arnmstrong site today and she was told that they were asked about
the possibility of renting parking spaces to the proposed site.
This would be across the street fromthis site. They were
refused. She said Rhonda indicated there is parking way out
back of the warehouse, but no one comng to the notorcycle

busi ness is going to park way out back of this warehouse. She
said Rhonda indicated as far as she knew there wasn’'t any
par ki ng.

M. Currier said on the application it states the days and hours
of operation as Moynday- Saturday from 9: 00AM - 5: 00PM There are
no | ate hours shown on the application.

Ms. Douglas said that is not what the owner testified to.

M. Currier asked if they would go with the testinony or with
what the application stated and other nenbers said they would go
with the testinony.

M. Coffey said that the testinony was that the owner was trying

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (36 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

to fit into what the downtown hours were, neaning he woul d be
open on Thursday ni ght.

M. Jenkins said no matter how you look at this, it is in an

I ndustrial zone, not a residential zone. He said it’s a unique
bui | di ng because it borderlines the General Industrial and

Resi denti al nei ghbor hood.

Furt her discussion ensued concerning the fact that this building
coul d have a manufacturing business that created all types of
noi se and do it without comng to the Board.

M. Coffey said he didn't foresee that parking would be a
probl em because he feels it is a drop-off and pick-up situation
and multiple people probably aren’t going to be there at the
sanme tine.

Di scussi on ensued about how the previous operation of a

not orcycl e business at Oterson & Main and the activity that
occurred there versus this owner’'s operation, which appears to
be much quieter. The Board discussed a stipulation concerning
out door display of the notorcycles or other nerchandi se that
they will have for sale.

M. Currier said he m ght be favorable to this if there were a
stipul ati on concerning the hours of operation. He said he
didn't want to see the business open | ate because it would be
di srupti ve.

M. Jenkins said he wouldn’t want to have a stipulation on the
hours of operation because soneone m ght want to pick up a
notorcycle |ater than the normal hours.

Ms. Douglas said the testinony she heard indicated that the
operation woul d be open Monday, Tuesday, Wdnesday and Fri day
from 9: 00AM 6: 00PM and 9: 00AM 8: O0OPM on Thursday, and from

9: 0O0AM 3: OOPM on Sat ur day.

She said the two houses immedi ately adjacent to this property
are the only two that are outside the residential cluster and in

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (37 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

the “d Zone.” @Gven the fact of where the zoning l[ine is she
doesn’t see where the Board has a | ot of choice.

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to approve the use variance to allow retail
sal es and service of notorcycles and ATVs at 24 Crown Street. A
zoning restriction as applied interferes with the landlord’ s
reasonabl e use of the property considering the unique setting of
the property inits environnment. No fair and substanti al

rel ati onship exists between the general purpose of the zoning
ordi nance and the specific restrictions of the property. The
variance would not injure the public or private rights of

others. The building is |located within the Q@ Zone. This is a

reasonabl e use of the property. It is wthin the spirit and
intent of the ordinance. It will not adversely affect the
property val ues of surrounding parcels. It is not contrary to
the public interest. Substantial justice will be served.

Speci al Condition: No outside display of nerchandi se. Hours of
operation to be as testified to.

SECONDED by M. Jenki ns.

MOTI ON CARRIED - 3-1, M. Currier opposed.

10. dernont G & Raynonde A Labonte (Omers) 450, 454 &
456 West Hollis Street & 14 & 18 Mercier Lane (Sheet E Lots
127, 179, 180 220 & 241) requesting the following: 1) use
variance to allow a two-famly dwelling; and the foll ow ng
variances: 2) to encroach 13 feet into the 30 foot front
yard setback to construct a second story addition on

exi sting building, 3) to exceed maxi num nunber of princi pal
structures on one lot, one permtted — one warehouse, one
two-famly dwelling proposed, and 4) to allow |ight trespass
to exceed 0.2 foot-candles at property boundary lines and to
all ow the height of lumnaries to exceed 3 feet at property
boundary. Pl Zone.

Atty. Gerald Prunier, 20 Trafal gar Square. Atty. Prunier said
this piece of property is |located on West Hollis Street. He

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (38 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

said as you cone off the exit heading toward Hol | i s/ Pepperell
there is a triangular piece between the ranp and St. Louis
deGonzague Cenetery and this is the piece under discussion.
It’s in the holl ow down bel ow. He pointed out the |ocation of
the Police Station. He showed the Board where Congress Supply,
Inc. is operating their business.

He said over the past four years M. Labonte has purchased sone
vacant property that the State had no nore use for. Mercer Lane
has been discontinued so everything on the other side of West
Hollis Street is owed by M. Labonte.

Atty. Prunier said one of the variances they are requesting is
for the setback fromWst Hollis Street. He said there’ s nobody
on West Hollis Street. The land is owned by M. Labonte.

He said there are two single-famly hones that wll be renoved
as part of this request as part of the agreenent with the Cty

I n discontinuing Mercier Lane. A duplex is being proposed for
enpl oyees of M. Labonte. The access will be off of West Hollis
Street.

He said the other request is due to the fact that they are
requesting two buil dings on one |ot - the warehouse that the
owner wants to build as well as the proposed dupl ex.

He said there is a request concerning the candl epower. He said
these two pieces will be together and the candl elight overcones
the owner’s other pieces of property in one location. |It’'s his
property that will be affected.

He said this is a unique piece of property in that it is
surrounded by Turnpi ke, old West Hollis Street that goes into
the F.E. Everett Turnpike. He said M. Labonte wants to put in
a war ehouse that woul d suppl enent his business, which is a
drywal | busi ness.

Atty. Prunier said this is a unique piece of property and the

use i s reasonable based on its location. It will not adversely
af fect any of the surrounding properties. He pointed out the

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (39 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

hi ghway, the Police Station, and cenetery.

He said the business won’'t make noi se. He said there won't be
any hamering in this area.

M. Jenkins asked if the present houses would be torn down.

Atty. Prunier said they will be. He said Mercier Lane is

di sconti nued and you have to be on a public street. He said
this part of West Hollis Street is still a public street and the
house w ||l be | ocated here.

M. Jenkins said the only thing mssing fromthis request is to
change Mercier Lane to Monte Court.

Atty. Prunier said this is before the Aldernman at this tine.

M. Jenkins said it seens |ike a good use of the property. It’'s
a good tax base for the Gty.

M. Currier asked about hardship.

Atty. Prunier said this used to be all single-famly hones quite
a while back. He said West Hollis Street went right through and
there was no turnpi ke. Wen the turnpi ke cane things changed.
There are two single-famly houses now and what they are trying
to do is take care of sone enpl oyees of M. Labonte by putting
themin a duplex with a public access.

M. Jenkins said this won't affect anyone el se since the whole
triangul ar piece belongs to M. Labonte.

Atty. Prunier said there is nothing else in that area.
M. Currier said he has seen the lot in question. He said this
Is zoned “Park Industrial.” He said the house | ooks like a fish

out of water.

M. Currier asked if the house is strictly for the use of
enpl oyees.

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (40 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

Atty. Prunier said right now that is the plan, but he doesn’'t
know what’'s going to happen in the future. He said at one tine
there were single-famly houses on Mercier Lane further down.
The State took those hones. The Gty re-zoned the [ and “Park

| ndustrial.”

SPEAKI NG I N FAVOR

No One.

SPEAKI NG | N OPPCSI Tl ON
No One.

M. Currier said M. Labonte wants to have the duplex for the
use of his enployees. He said it alnost |ooks |ike “spot
zoning.” He asked if the Board is okay with this.

M. Coffey said he didn't necessarily see this as “spot zoning”
in the sense that there are dwellings there now He said it’'s a
busy area, but since there’'s no access fromthe hi ghway any nore
it may not be too bad for sonebody who wants to live there.

He said the buildings that are there are pretty dil api dated and
this will inprove the aesthetics of the property.

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to approve the use variance to allow a two-
famly dwelling at 450, 454, & 456 West Hollis Street & 14 & 18
Mercier Lane. The zoning restriction as applied interferes with
the landl ord’ s reasonabl e use of the property considering the
uni que setting of the property inits environnent. No fair and
substantial relationship exists between the general purpose of

t he zoni ng ordi nance and the specific restrictions on the
property. The property is adjacent to the highway. The
applicant owns all the surrounding property. This gives him
reasonabl e use of his property. There are two, single-famly
dwel lings currently on the parcel and it will go down to one,
two-famly dwelling. It is within the spirit and intent of the
ordinance. It will not adversely affect the property val ues of

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (41 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

surroundi ng parcels. It’'s not contrary to the public interest.
Substantial justice will be served by granting the vari ance.

SECONDED by M. Jenki ns.
MOTI ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

MOTI ON by M. Coffey to approve the follow ng variances: 1) to
encroach 13’ into the 30" front yard setback to construct a
second story addition on an existing building, 2)to exceed the
maxi mum nunber of principal structures on one |ot, one permtted
- one warehouse and one two-famly dwelling proposed, and 3)to
allow l'ight trespass to exceed 0.2 foot-candles at property
boundary lines and to allow the height of the lumnaries to
exceed 3’ at property boundaries at 450, 454, & 456 West Hollis
Street & 14 & 18 Mercier Lane. The variance is needed to enable
the applicant’s proposed use of the property given the speci al
conditions of the property. The benefit sought by the applicant
cannot be achi eved by sone other nethod. The applicant owns all
the parcels. The adjacent parcel is also owed by the applicant

where the light will go over the boundary. It wll give the
appl i cant reasonable use of his property. It is within the
spirit and intent of the ordinance. It will not adversely
affect the property values of surrounding parcels. It is not

contrary to the public interest. Substantial justice will be
served.

SECONDED by M. Jenki ns.

MOT1 ON CARRI ED UNANI MOUSLY

Post poned to 8/9/05

11. Therese G Trottier (Omer) R chard C. Rai sanen
(Applicant) L Catherine Street (Sheet 126 Lots 148, 152, 155
& 158) appeal ing decision of the adm nistrative officer that

file://lIIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (42 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

a building permt should be granted to all ow two single-
famly hones on a paper street. RA Zone.

12. Therese G Trottier (Omer) Richard C. Rai sanen
(Applicant) L Catherine Street (Sheet 126 Lots 148, 152, 155
& 158) requesting the follow ng variances: 1) m ni num | ot
frontage, 60 feet required, O feet proposed; and 2) m ni num
| ot wwdth, 75 feet required — O feet proposed, to construct
two single famly hones on a paper street. RA Zone.

M NUTES

6/ 28/ 05

MOTION by M. Currier to accept the m nutes of 6/28/ 05 neeting,
wai ve the reading, and place themon file.

SECONDED by M. Coffey.

MOTI ON CARRI ED 3-1, Ms. Dougl as abst ai ned.
Request for Rehearing

None

Regi onal | npact

The Board di scussed itens on the agenda that had previously been
post poned, but they did not find any itens of regional inpact.

ADJ OURNMENT

M. Jenkins called the neeting cl osed at 9: 05PM

Susan Dougl as

file:///llIWwwlive/nashua_wwwi/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (43 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



ZBA Minutes

C erk

| t
Taped

file:/l1IIWwwlive/nashua. www/Planning/ZoningBoard/Minutes/2005/072605.htm (44 of 44)12/28/2005 3:44:28 AM



	Local Disk
	ZBA Minutes


